
 

WTRY Broadcast Schedule Regular Meetings, Wednesday, 6:00 p.m. and 11:00 p.m. Study Meetings, Wednesday, 3:00 p.m. 

 PLANNING COMMISSION 
 MEETING AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING 
 
 

John J. Tagle, Chair, Donald Edmunds, Vice Chair 
Michael W. Hutson, Edward Kempen, Tom Krent, Philip Sanzica 

Gordon Schepke, Robert Schultz and Thomas Strat 
   
August 14, 2012 7:00 P.M. Council Chambers 
   

 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – July 24, 2012 Special/Study Meeting 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – For Items Not on the Current Agenda 
 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEWS 
 
5. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 975) – Proposed Sears Holdings 

Technical Center, North of Big Beaver, West of Coolidge (2240 Cunningham), Section 19, 
Currently Zoned BB (Big Beaver) District (Consent Judgment) 

 
6. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 976) – Proposed Regents Park of 

Troy Phase II, West of Crooks, North side of Butterfield, Section 29, Currently Zoned MF 
(Multi Family) District 

 
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

 
7. PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (File Number PUD 004) – Big Beaver Center (formerly 

“The Monarch”) PUD, North side of Big Beaver Road between Alpine and McClure, Section 
20, Currently Zoned PUD 004 and R-1B (One Family Residential) Districts 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 

 
8. PUBLIC COMMENTS – For Items on Current Agenda 
 
9. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 
NOTICE: People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at 

clerk@troymi.gov or by calling (248) 524-3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 

500 W. Big Beaver 
Troy, MI  48084 
(248) 524-3364 
www.troymi.gov 

planning@troymi.gov 

mailto:clerk@ci.troy.mi.us�


PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT JULY 24, 2012 
  
 
 

1 
 

Chair Tagle called the Special/Study meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to order 
at 7:02 p.m. on July 24, 2012 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Donald Edmunds 
Michael W. Hutson 
Edward Kempen 
Tom Krent 
Philip Sanzica 
Gordon Schepke 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Ben Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Eric Huang, Student Representative 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2012-07-048 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the agenda as published. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2012-07-049 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Krent 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the July 10, 2012 Regular meeting as 
submitted. 
 
Yes: Edmunds, Hutson, Krent, Sanzica, Schepke, Schultz, Strat 
Abstain: Kempen, Tagle 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT JULY 24, 2012 
  
 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
5. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (ZBA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Strat reported on the July 17, 2012 Zoning Board of Appeals meeting. 

 
6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Savidant reported there was no Downtown Development Authority meeting in July. 

 
7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 

 
Mr. Savidant reported that at the July 23, 2012 Regular meeting, City Council 
unanimously approved the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment to allow drive 
through financial institutions in the Big Beaver District by Special Use Approval. 
 
 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 
 
8. PUBLIC HEARING – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (File Number PUD 004) – Big 

Beaver Center (formerly “The Monarch”) PUD, North side of Big Beaver Road between 
Alpine and McClure, Section 20, Currently Zoned PUD 004 and R-1B (One Family 
Residential) Districts 
 
Mr. Savidant introduced the item. 
 
The petitioners, Arkan Jonna and Jordan Jonna of A. F. Jonna Development Company 
were present.   
 
Mark Nickita, AIA, of Archive Design Studio, gave a PowerPoint presentation on the 
commercial project design. 
 
Mr. Krent addressed vehicular traffic and the residential aspect of the development.  He 
suggested moving the bank to the east and would like to see a good transitional blend 
between the proposed and existing residential.  Mr. Krent distributed a proposed layout 
depicting the bank on the east side of the site. 
 
Mr. Carlisle gave a brief history of the site and a report on the proposed development.  
He said the proposal meets many aspects of the Master Plan and the proposed public 
realm is a very significant public benefit.  Mr. Carlisle addressed the findings of the 
traffic consultant report that the increase in density would have a negligible effect along 
Big Beaver.  He applauded the petitioner in the massing of the building.  In conclusion, 
Mr. Carlisle addressed site plan concerns relating to both the commercial and 
residential site plans. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT JULY 24, 2012 
  
 
 

3 
 

PUBLIC HEARING OPEN 
 
Jeanne Stine, 1915 Boulan, Troy; addressed density, vehicular and pedestrian traffic, 
curb cuts, egress, bank location, safety of children, traffic light/pedestrian crossing. 
 
Barbara Dawson, 1834 Boulan, Troy, addressed cut-through traffic, dead end or cul de 
sac street, bank location, front vs rear parking for commercial. 
 
Susan Tompkins, 1725 Banmoor, addressed findings of traffic study, sidewalks, 
pedestrian traffic. 
 
Sharon Mitchell, 3142 McClure, Troy, addressed vehicular and pedestrian traffic. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
There was discussion on: 
• Vehicular traffic; cut-through traffic. 
• Proposed bank. 

o Ingress/egress; potential traffic congestion. 
o Moving bank to the east. 
o Drive-through capability. 
o Newly adopted Zoning Ordinance amendment; drive through must utilize in lane 

or side street. 
• Pedestrian walkway; width of walkway. 
• Parking. 

o Front versus rear. 
o Percentage for food services. 

• Material samples. 
• Residential development. 

o Buffer. 
o Transition between high and low density. 
o Blend with existing neighborhood. 

• Additional public amenities. 
• No sidewalks; safety of children. 
• Building view from rear. 

o Architectural design. 
o Landscape/ additional green. 

• DDA district boundaries. 
 
The petitioners addressed reasons for not moving the bank to the east. 
• Conflict with vehicular and pedestrian bank patrons. 
• Detraction of retail point position. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT JULY 24, 2012 
  
 
 

4 
 

Resolution # PC-2012-07-050 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby postpones this item until such time that 
the applicant submits a complete Concept Development Plan and Preliminary 
Development Plan application that addresses the issues identified in the Planning 
Consultant report. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the table. 
 
The petitioner advised that the proposed residential portion of the development would 
be inclusive of the complete application submittal. 
 
Vote on the motion on the table. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

CONDITIONAL REZONING REQUESTS 
 
9. PUBLIC HEARING – CONDITIONAL REZONING APPLICATION (File Number CR 007, 

formerly File Number Z 740) – Proposed Charter One Bank Branch, 125 Stephenson 
Highway and 1250 W. 14 Mile Road, Section 35, From O (Office) District to IB 
(Integrated Industrial and Business) District 
 
Mr. Savidant gave a review on the conditional rezoning application.  He read the 
petitioner’s list of uses that would be prohibited and criteria relating to any new 
construction.  Mr. Savidant said the application is consistent with the Master Plan and 
the conditions volunteered by the petitioner are reasonable.  The Planning Department 
recommends moving the request forward to City Council with a favorable 
recommendation. 
 
There was discussion on: 
• Site plan approval process; conditions. 
• Landscaping 30’ greenbelt with coniferous trees. 
• Site plan submittal not required by Zoning Ordinance. 
• Conditional Rezoning Agreement, required by Zoning Ordinance. 
• 50 foot total buffer to residential; 30 foot volunteered by petitioner in addition to 20 

foot required setback. 
 
Mr. Strat said he would vote no on the request because the application does not meet 
the intent of the State to permit conditional rezonings. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT JULY 24, 2012 
  
 
 

5 
 

The petitioners, Daniel Stern and Jason Horton, of Lormax Stern Development 
Company were present.  Mr. Stern announced the company has a potential viable user 
for the building on site. 
 
Mr. Horton said it is their intent to plant trees along the 30’ greenbelt.  He briefly 
discussed marketing strategy for the site.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2012-07-051 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Sanzica 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council 
that the O (Office) to IB (Integrated Industrial and Business) conditional rezoning 
request, as per Section 16.04 of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance, located on the 
northwest corner of Stephenson Highway and 14 Mile Road (125 Stephenson Highway 
and 1250 W. 14 Mile Road), within Section 35, being approximately 7 acres in size, be 
granted, for the following reasons and with the following conditions:  
 
1. The execution of a Conditional Rezoning Agreement. 
2. The application is consistent with the Master Plan. 
3. The application is compatible with existing zoning districts and land uses. 
4. The applicant proposes the following conditions that reduce potential impacts of the 

proposed IB district on abutting residential properties: 
A. The property can be used for all permitted uses allowed in the IB zoning 

classification except for the following uses which are expressly prohibited: 
a) Manufacturing and assembly uses which utilize hazardous materials or which 

release any odor, noise  or vibration into the environment 
b) Material recovering facilities 
c) Bus terminals 
d) Building and lumber supplies 
e) Outdoor commercial recreation 
f) Outdoor storage facilities 
g) Open air businesses 
h) Adult use businesses 
i) Vehicle repair stations 
j) Vehicle auctions 
k) Vehicle washes 
l) Dry cleaners and laundries 
m) Central dry cleaning/laundry plants 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT JULY 24, 2012 
  
 
 

6 
 

n) Outdoor dining adjacent to the east and west sides  and along the north rear 
of any buildings 

o) Commercial kennels/pet day care 
p) Vehicle fueling stations 
q) Ambulance facilities 
r) Commercial wind energy conversion systems and meteorological towers  
s) Truck terminals 

B. Further, that new development of the property is also subject to the following 
additional conditions: 
a) New buildings and structures shall be subject to all applicable ordinances, site 

plan requirements and site plan approval. 
b) Heights of new buildings shall not exceed two stories.  
c) A 30 foot landscaped greenbelt shall be constructed adjacent to the north and 

west boundary lines that abut residential homes.  
d) Truck deliveries between 11 p.m. and 8 a.m. shall be prohibited. 
e) Outdoor storage of materials shall be prohibited. 

 
Yes: Edmunds, Hutson, Kempen, Krent, Sanzica, Schepke, Schultz, Tagle 
No: Strat 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
10. CONDITIONAL REZONING APPLICATION (File Number CR 006) – Proposed Troy 

Plaza Development, West side of Crooks, North side of New King (5500 New King), 
Section 8, From PUD (Planned Unit Development) to OM (Office Mixed Use) and CB 
(Community Business) Districts 
 
Mr. Carlisle gave a review on the conditional rezoning application.  He noted the 
applicant is asking for flexibility with the two proposed buildings that face New King.  Mr. 
Carlisle said the concept and uses of the application are agreeable but there are 
concerns with the site plan, as noted in his report dated July 20, 2012.  He stated the 
applicant understands the Planning Department’s position and is amenable to working 
with the department toward a solution. 
 
The petitioner, Michael Gordon of MGA Architects, was present.  He indicated a need 
for flexibility with the proposed restaurant and hotel to accommodate the various 
standards set forth with different restaurant chains and hotel flagships.  Mr. Gordon said 
the two front buildings facing Crooks are locked-in as a McDonald’s restaurant and a 
mixed retail/office use. 
 
Resolution # PC-2012-07-052 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Strat 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT JULY 24, 2012 
  
 
 

7 
 

RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission postpones consideration of the proposed 
conditional rezoning application until such time that the applicant submits a site plan 
that complies with the Zoning Ordinance, and meets with staff to discuss the issues 
listed in the Planning Commission report. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

11. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
12. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 

 
• Warm welcome to Ed Kempen. 
• Roll call votes (potential to save time if eliminated). 
• Safety relating to curb cuts, pedestrian pathways and sidewalks. 
• Procedure/process of Conditional Rezoning applications (study session item). 
 

 
The Special/Study meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:45 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
John Tagle, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2012 PC Minutes\Draft\2012 07 24 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 
 



  PC 2012.08.14 
  Agenda Item # 5 
 

 
 
DATE: August 9, 2012 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 975) – Proposed Sears 

Holdings Technical Center, North of Big Beaver, West of Coolidge (2240 
Cunningham), Section 19, Currently Zoned BB (Big Beaver) District (Consent 
Judgment) 

 
The petitioner Sears Holdings Management Corporation submitted the above referenced 
Preliminary Site Plan Approval application for a new security fence surrounding the Sears 
Holdings Technical Center.   
 
The property is currently zoned BB (Big Beaver) District but is controlled by a consent judgment.  
The consent judgment must be amended because of the proposed site plan revision.   
Therefore the Planning Commission is a recommendation body for this application,  City Council 
is responsible for approving the revised site plan and consent judgment.   
 
The building’s use as a data center will not change.  The applicant seeks to secure its facility by 
enclosing it with a fence and gates. 
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA), the City’s Planning 
Consultant, summarizes the project.  CWA prepared the report with input from various City 
departments including Planning, Engineering, Public Works and Fire.   City Management 
supports the findings of fact contained in the report and recommends approval of the project, as 
noted.   
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 

 
cc: Applicant 
 File/ SP 975 
 
 
G:\SITE PLANS\SP 975  Sears Holdings Technical Center  Sec 19\SP-975 PC Memo 08 14 12.docx 



 
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEWS 

 
5. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 975) – Proposed Sears 

Holdings Technical Center, North of Big Beaver, West of Coolidge (2240 
Cunningham), Section 19, Currently Zoned BB (Big Beaver) District (Consent 
Judgment) 
 
Resolution # PC-2012-08- 
Moved by:  
Seconded by:  
 
 
RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby recommends to City Council, 
that Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the revised site plan for the Sears 
Holdings Technical Center, including a proposed eight-foot high security fence, a 
portion of which is located in the front yard, located north of Big Beaver, west of 
Coolidge (2240 Cunningham), in Section 19, Currently Zoned BB (Big Beaver) 
District, but controlled by Consent Judgment be granted, subject to the following: 

 
1. Satisfy the fire departments access requirements including providing gate 

code or opener;  
2. Replace any trees removed as a result of fence installation; and  
3. Indicate what protection within their parking lot is being provided for the 

fence.   
 
Yes:  
No: 
 
MOTION CARRIED/FAILED 

 
 
 G:\SITE PLANS\SP 975  Sears Holdings Technical Center  Sec 19\SP 975 PC Resolution 08 14 2012.doc 



2240 Cunningham, Sears Holdings

7/5/2012

Legend

1: 2,340

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1950390 390Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75
Road Centerline

Major Road
Industrial Road
Local Road

Ponds and Basins
Streams and Creeks
Parcels
Aerial Photos - 2010

Red:    Band_1
Green: Band_2
Blue:   Band_3



2240 Cunningham, Sears Holdings

7/5/2012

Legend

1: 1,872

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1560312 312Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75
Road Centerline

Major Road
Industrial Road
Local Road

Current Zoning Ordinance
(PUD) Planned Unit Development
(CF) Community Facilities District
(EP) Environmental Protection District
(BB) Big Beaver Road (Form Based)
(MRF) Maple Road (Form Based)
(NN) Neighborhood Nodes (A-U)
(CB) Community Business
(GB) General Business
(IB) Integrated Industrial Business District
(O) Office Building District
(OM) Office Mixed Use
(P) Vehicular Parking District
(R-1A) One Family Residential District
(R-1B) One Family Residential District
(R-1C) One Family Residential District
(R-1D) One Family Residential District
(R-1E) One Family Residential District
(RT) One Family Attached Residential District
(MR) Multi-Family Residential
(MHP) Manufactured Housing
(UR) Urban Residential
(RC) Research Center District
(PV) Planned Vehicle Sales

Ponds and Basins
Streams and Creeks
Parcels
Aerial Photos - 2010

Red:    Band_1
Green: Band_2
Blue:   Band_3



 
 

605 S. Main Street, Ste. 1 
Ann Arbor, MI  48104 
 
(734) 662-2200 
(734) 662-1935 Fax 

Proposed Fence Location  

 
 Date:  July 27, 2012 

 

Site Plan Review 
For 

City of Troy, Michigan 
 
 
  
Project Name: Sears Holdings Technical Center   
 
Plan Date: June 12, 2012 
 
Location: North side of Cunningham Drive  
 
Zoning: Big Beaver under Consent Judgment 
 
Action Requested: Site Plan Approval 
 
PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
The applicant proposes to construct an 8-foot high 
fence around the entirety of their parcel.  The 
applicant indicates that the fence is required for 
security purposes.  The fence will have two gates off 
Cunningham Drive to provide site access.   
 
This property is controlled by a consent judgment.  
Normally a fence does not require site plan 
approval; however all changes to the site require 
and amendment to the consent judgment, including 
a revised site plan. Because this is a consent 
judgment the Planning Commission is making a 
recommendation to City Council regarding the site 
plan.  The approval of the fence will require an 
amendment to the consent judgment by the City 
Council.   
 
 
 Gate Locations  



Sears Holding Technical Center  
July 27, 2012 

2 

 
FENCE DESIGN 
 
The proposed fence will be eight-foot metal with spikes that turn into the property.  Such fence type is 
permitted in Troy.   
 
The applicant is seeking relief to allow for the fence to be eight-foot high in the required front yard 
(adjacent to Cunningham Drive) where only 30 inches in height is permitted.  Because this property is 
controlled by a consent judgment, the requested relief can be granted by the City Council, based on a 
recommendation of the Planning Commission.  Due in part that this is security fence where a minimum 
six to eight-feet in height is necessary, and the site’s location in an office area where the property’s 
front yard is not adjacent to any residential property, the requested relief to permit an eight-foot high 
fence in the front yard should be considered by the Planning Commission.   
 
Items to be Addressed:  Seek a recommendation from Planning Commission for an eight-foot high 
fence in front yard.  
 
ACCESS and CIRCULATION 
 
A curb already exists between this site and the adjacent site.  Access to the site will remain via the 
existing two curb cuts off Cunningham Drive.  The applicant proposes to gate these curb cuts; however 
the two proposed gates will remain open during normal 8 a.m to 5 p.m. business hours.  Only after 
normal business hours will the gates be closed.  Because the gates remain open during normal business 
hours there should not be any car stacking along Cunningham Lane. Access and site circulation is 
sufficient.  
 
The applicant will need to satisfy the fire departments access requirements including providing a gate 
code or opener.   
 
Items to be Addressed:  Satisfy the fire departments access requirements including providing a gate 
code or opener.   
 
PARKING LOT LAYOUT and TOTAL PARKING PROVIDED 
 
The site currently provides 220 spaces.  The zoning ordinance does not specifically list this use.  Office 
uses require 1 space per 300 sq/ft, which would require 287 spaces.  Research and development 
centers and related accessory office require 1 space per 550 sq/ft, which would require 156 spaces. 
However due to building operations we find that this use is more consistent with research and 
development centers.  More importantly because this is an existing site the applicant who understands 
their building operations assures that the provided 220 spaces is sufficient.    We find that parking 
should be sufficient.   
 
Items to be Addressed:  None.  
 
 
 
 



Sears Holding Technical Center  
July 27, 2012 

3 

TRANSITION 
 
The proposed fence will be partially or entirely screened from the northern single family properties due 
to an existing wood fence along the applicants northern property line, as well as existing vegetation and 
an existing berm.  Some trees on the applicant’s property may have to be removed as a result of the 
fence installation.  While these trees are entirely on the applicant’s property they do provide screening 
and cover for the adjacent single family neighbors.  The applicant has indicated that any trees removed 
as a result of the fence installation will be replaced.   
 
The eastern line of the fence will divide the properties parking lot with the adjacent eastern parking lot.  
The applicant has indicated that if they installed a greenbelt between the two parking lots and put the 
fence in the greenbelt, they would lose an entire aisle of parking and parking on site would not be 
sufficient.  However, it is likely that without some curbing and curb stops this fence will be damaged by 
cars and snow plows. The applicant should indicate what protection they are providing the fence within 
their parking lot.   
 
Items to be Addressed:  1. Replace any trees removed as result of fence installation; and 2). Indicate 
what protection within their parking lot is being provided for the fence.   
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
We support the proposed project and believe the project does meet the intent of the zoning ordinance.  
We recommend that the Planning Commission recommend approval of the proposed fence, provided 
the following items are addressed:   
 

1. Obtain recommendation from the Planning Commission for an eight-foot high fence in front 
yard;  

2. Satisfy the fire departments access requirements including providing of gate code or opener;  
3. Replace any trees removed as a result of fence installation; and  
4. Indicate what protection within their parking lot is being provided for the fence.   

 
The final two items can be submitted to staff prior to City Council consideration.    
 
 

 







DESIGN &
CONSTRUCTIONFACILITIES GROUP

preliminary review 
July 30, 2012  A&E Design           

Data Center - Troy, Michigan
Proposed Perimeter Fence 1

BEFORE

AFTER

Classic Style Fence Topper



DESIGN &
CONSTRUCTIONFACILITIES GROUP

preliminary review 
July 30, 2012  A&E Design           

Data Center - Troy, Michigan
Proposed Perimeter Fence - Gates 2

BEFORE BEFORE

AFTER - Cunningham Drive Entrance

Classic Style Fence Topper

AFTER - Rear Entrance



DESIGN &
CONSTRUCTIONFACILITIES GROUP

preliminary review 
July 30, 2012  A&E Design           

Data Center - Troy, Michigan
Proposed Perimeter Fence 3

BEFORE

BEFORE

AFTER

AFTER

Classic Style Fence Topper



  PC 2012.08.14 
  Agenda Item # 6 
 

 
 
DATE: August 9, 2012 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 976) – Proposed Regents 

Park of Troy Phase II, West of Crooks, North side of Butterfield, Section 29, 
Currently Zoned MF (Multi Family) District 

 
 
The petitioner Village Green submitted the above referenced Preliminary Site Plan Approval 
application for Regents Park of Troy Phase II.   
 
The property is currently zoned MF (Multi Family Residential) District.  The Planning 
Commission is responsible for granting Preliminary Site Plan Approval for this item.  
 
This Phase II project will add 58 apartment units adjacent to the existing Regents Park facility. 
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA), the City’s Planning 
Consultant, summarizes the project.  CWA prepared the report with input from various City 
departments including Planning, Engineering, Public Works and Fire.  City Management 
supports the findings of fact contained in the report and recommends approval of the project, as 
noted.   
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 

 
cc: Applicant 
 File/ SP 976 
 
 
G:\SITE PLANS\SP 976  Regents Park of Troy  Sec 29\SP-976 PC Memo 08 14 12.docx 



 
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEWS 

 
6. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 976) – Proposed Regents 

Park of Troy Phase II, West of Crooks, North side of Butterfield, Section 29, 
Currently Zoned MF (Multi Family) District 
 
Resolution # PC-2012-08- 
Moved by:  
Seconded by:  
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, pursuant to Article 8 of the 
Zoning Ordinance, as requested for proposed Regents Park of Troy Phase II, 
located west of Crooks on the north side of Butterfield, Section 29, within the MF 
(Multi-Family Residential) district, be granted, subject to the following: 
 
1. Provide minimum floor area per unit information;  
2. Add one additional tree along Butterfield Road;  
3. Obtain variance from the Building Code Board of Appeals to allow for a 6-foot 

high fence where only 30-inchs is allowed in the front yard;  
4. Provide trash enclosure details; and 
5. Submit fixture and pole details and revised photometrics that comply with 

Section 13.05 as part of final site plan review.    
 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
MOTION CARRIED/FAILED 

 
 
 G:\SITE PLANS\SP 976  Regents Park of Troy  Sec 29\SP 976 PC Resolution 08 14 2012.doc 



REGENTS PARK OF TROY, PHASE II

7/17/2012

Legend

1: 1,123

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

940187 187Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75
Road Centerline

Major Road
Industrial Road
Local Road

Ponds and Basins
Streams and Creeks
Parcels
Aerial Photos - 2010

Red:    Band_1
Green: Band_2
Blue:   Band_3



REGENTS PARK OF TROY, PHASE II

7/17/2012

Legend

1: 1,404

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1170234 234Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75
Road Centerline

Major Road
Industrial Road
Local Road

Current Zoning Ordinance
(PUD) Planned Unit Development
(CF) Community Facilities District
(EP) Environmental Protection District
(BB) Big Beaver Road (Form Based)
(MRF) Maple Road (Form Based)
(NN) Neighborhood Nodes (A-U)
(CB) Community Business
(GB) General Business
(IB) Integrated Industrial Business District
(O) Office Building District
(OM) Office Mixed Use
(P) Vehicular Parking District
(R-1A) One Family Residential District
(R-1B) One Family Residential District
(R-1C) One Family Residential District
(R-1D) One Family Residential District
(R-1E) One Family Residential District
(RT) One Family Attached Residential District
(MR) Multi-Family Residential
(MHP) Manufactured Housing
(UR) Urban Residential
(RC) Research Center District
(PV) Planned Vehicle Sales

Ponds and Basins
Streams and Creeks
Parcels
Aerial Photos - 2010

Red:    Band_1
Green: Band_2
Blue:   Band_3



 
 

605 S. Main Street, Ste. 1 
Ann Arbor, MI  48104 
 
(734) 662-2200 
(734) 662-1935 Fax 

 
 Date:  August 10, 2012 

  
 

Preliminary Site Plan Review 
For 

City of Troy, Michigan 
 
 
 
 
Project Name: Regents Park of Troy-Phase II  
 
Plan Date: July 13, 2012 
 
Location: North side of Butterfield Road, just west of Alisop Place 
 
Zoning: MF, Multiple Family Residential District 
 
Action Requested: Site Plan Approval 
 
Required Information: Deficiencies noted 
 
PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
Regents Park proposes Phase 2 of their development.  Phase 2 includes two (2) buildings (Building 12 
and 13) totaling 58 apartments, and 116 off-street parking spaces, including 70 in an underground 
garage. Phase 2 is located directly west of the existing Phase 1 development, and is intended to match 
existing Phase 1.  Phase 2 property includes three (3) parcels, which totals 3.0 acres in size, and is 
currently improved with a vacant single-family home.  Phase 2 will be accessed from the common 
entrance that serves Phase 1 as well.  There will not be an additional curb cut on Butterfield Avenue.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Regents Park 
August 8, 2012 

2 

 
Location of Subject Property: 
 North side of Butterfield Avenue, just west of Alisop Place  
 
 

 
 
Size of Subject Property: 
3.0 acres in area. 
 
Proposed Uses of Subject Parcel: 
The applicant proposes to use the site to build two (2) buildings totaling 58 apartments, and 116 off-
street parking spaces, 70 of which are located in an underground garage.   
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
The subject property is currently improved with one single-family house. 
 
Current Zoning: 
The property is currently zoned MF, Multiple Family Residential District.   
 
 
 
 
 

Proposed 
Phase 2 
Location  

Existing Phase 1 



Regents Park 
August 8, 2012 

3 

Surrounding Property Details 
 

Direction Zoning Use 
North  BB, Big Beaver Form Based District Office 
South MF, Multiple-Family Residential District Apartments: Regent Park 
East MF, Multiple-Family Residential District Apartments: Regent Park  
West P, Parking Parking for Office Building and 

Benihana on Big Beaver 
 

SITE ARRANGEMENT 
 

The proposed site layout consists of two buildings that are placed parallel to Butterfield Road.  The 
buildings face an internal common courtyard, and are surrounded on three sides with parking and a 
drive-aisle.  Pedestrian circulation is provided around the buildings and to the existing Phase 1 
development to the east.   
 
Items to be Addressed: None.   
 
AREA, WIDTH, HEIGHT, SETBACKS 
 
Required and Provided Dimensions: 
Table 4.08.C establishes the requirements for the MR District. The requirements and the proposed 
dimensions are as follows: 
 

 
 

  
Required / 
Allowed: 

Provided: 
Compliance: 

Units Per Acre 24  19.3 Complies 

Height 8 Stories, 100 feet 5 stories, 60-feet Complies 

Front 30-foot setback 67.5 feet Complies 

Rear 35-foot setback 72.5 feet Compiles 

Side 30-foot setback  107.0 feet Complies 

Distance between 
buildings 

30 feet Minimum 77.5 feet Complies 

Minimum Floor Area 
Per Unit 

Efficiency or 1 bedroom: 600 
2 bedroom:  800 
3 bedroom: 1,000 
4 bedroom:  1,200  

No Information Provided Not Enough Information  

Maximum Lot Area 
Covered by Buildings 

35 percent 19.5 Complies 



Regents Park 
August 8, 2012 

4 

 
MR Supplemental Regulations 
 
In addition to the table of area, width, height and setback requirements, the MR district includes the 
following additional supplemental regulations that must be met:  
 

1. Setbacks Adjacent to Single-Family Residential.  
 
Not Applicable  
 

2. Primary Entrance. The primary building entrance to each building shall be clearly identifiable. 
 
The primary entrance for each building is clearly identifiable and is highlighted by a drop-off/pick-up 
area.  
 

3. Pedestrian Connection. A pedestrian connection shall provide a clear, obvious, publicly-
accessible connection between the primary street upon which the building fronts and the site.  

 
Pedestrian circulation is provided via a 5-foot sidewalk around the buildings and to the existing Phase 1 
development to the east.  The site is well served by pedestrian connections.   
 

4. Off-Street Parking Location. 
a. No more than fifty (50) percent of the required front yard shall be occupied by off-

street parking. 
 
Complies 
 

b. For a corner lot, no more than fifty (50) percent of the required yards along public 
road frontage shall be occupied by off-street parking. 

 
Not applicable  
 

5. Recreation Space.  All multiple-family developments in an MF District shall contain an area or 
areas provided for common recreation which is the equivalent of four hundred and fifty (450) 
square feet per dwelling unit.  
 

Based on 58 units, 26,100 sq/ft of common recreation area must be provided.  Such common recreation 
areas shall be located and designed in a manner which is appropriate to meet the recreational needs of 
the prospective residents of the development. The intent is to provide sufficient on-site open space for 
residents use.  Such recreational facilities may include, but not be limited to, swimming pools, tennis 
courts, playgrounds, picnic areas, playfields, and jogging trails. The site exceeds the 26,100 sq/ft 
recreation space requirement, most of which is located in the courtyard.   
 
Items to be Addressed: 1). Provide minimum floor area per unit information.   
 
 



Regents Park 
August 8, 2012 

5 

PARKING 
 

Section 13.06.G of the Zoning Ordinance requires: 
 
 Required Provided 
Residential (2 spaces per unit) 56 units = 116 spaces 116 spaces including 70 

in an underground 
garage.   

   
Barrier Free 5 5 
Bicycle Parking 2 0 
Total 116 automobile + 2 bicycle 116 spaces + 0 bicycle 
 
Items to be Addressed:  1). Provide at least two bicycle spaces.  
 
SITE ACCESS AND CIRCULATION 
 
Vehicular access and Circulation: 
 
Phase 2 will be accessed from the common entrance that serves Phase 1 as well.  There will be no 
additional curb cut on Butterfield Avenue.     As noted the two buildings are surrounded on three sides 
with a parking and Avenue-aisle.  Vehicular access and circulation are sufficient.  
 
Pedestrian access:  
 
The site is well served by pedestrian connections including internal connections between Phase 1 and 
Phase 2, as well as connections between Phase 2 and the Butterfield Avenue sidewalk.  
 
Items to be Addressed: None        
 
LANDSCAPING 
 
The site is currently encumbered with numerous mature trees.  The applicant indicates that all existing 
on-site trees will be removed as part of the site grading process.   However, the applicant has provided a 
detailed landscape plan.  The plan includes a mix of deciduous and coniferous trees, deciduous and 
coniferous shrubs, and perennials. All proposed species fall within Troy regulations and are not 
prohibited. 
 
Detailed calculations regarding how the site meets the landscaping requirements was not provided on 
the plan.  These calculations should be provided on the landscape plan as part of the final site plan 
submittal.   
 
 
 
 



Regents Park 
August 8, 2012 

6 

 Required: Provided: Compliance: 

Greenbelt 
 
 

Butterfield Avenue:  
One deciduous tree for 
every 30 lineal feet = 10 
trees 

9 trees Add one additional tree 
along Butterfield.  

20% site landscaping A minimum of twenty 
percent (20%) of the 
site area shall be 
comprised of landscape 
material. 

It appears that the site 
meets the 20% 
requirement; however 
detailed calculations 
were not provided 

Not enough information 
provided.   

Parking Lot 
Landscaping.  1 tree 
for every 8 parking 
spaces.  Trees may be 
located adjacent to 
parking lot with 
planning commission 
approval.   

6 trees required.   9 trees Complies  

 
The applicant notes 10 Autumn Blaze Maples along Butterfield however only 9 trees are shown on the 
plan.  The applicant needs to add one additional Autumn Blaze Maple along Butterfield.   
 
Fence: 
 
Consistent with Phase 1, the applicant proposes a 6-foot high chain link fence along Butterfield Avenue.  
In residential districts, the maximum fence height permitted in a required front yard is 30-inches.  The 
applicant will need to obtain a variance from the Building Board of Appeals to allow for a 6-foot high 
fence where only 30-inches is allowed.  The applicant notes that the fence is for security purposes.   
 
Trash Enclosure: 
 
The applicant shows two (2) new trash enclosures both located north of Building 12.  The applicant is 
required to screen these trash enclosures as outlined in Section 13.03.  Trash enclosure screening details 
have not been provided.    
 
Items to be Addressed: 1). Submit detailed landscape calculations; 2). Add one additional tree along 
Butterfield Road; 3). Obtain variance from the building board of appeals to allow for a 6-foot high fence 
where only 30-inchs is allowed; and 4). provide trash enclosure details.   
 
PHOTOMETRICS 
 
Phase 1 does not include parking lot lighting.  The applicant included a Photometric Plan for Phase 2, but 
titled the drawing “Electrical Plan” (Sheet SP-9.0).  The Photometric Plan meets the requirements of 
Section 13.05 except light intensity along Butterfield needs to be reduced to 1.0 foot candle or less.  
Fixture and pole details that comply with Section 13.05 should be submitted as part of the final site plan 
review.  
 



Regents Park 
August 8, 2012 

7 

Items to be Addressed: 1). Fixture and pole details that comply with Section 13.05 should be submitted 
as part of the final site plan review; 2) Reduce lighting intensity to 1.0 foot candle or less along all 
property lines.   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
We support the proposed project and believe the project does meets requirements.  The remaining 
items can be handled administratively.  As such, we recommend the Planning Commission approve the 
preliminary site plan conditioned on the applicant satisfying the following requirements for final site 
plan approval: 

1. Provide minimum floor area per unit information;  
2. Add one additional tree along Butterfield Road;  
3. Obtain variance from the building board of appeals to allow for a 6-foot high fence where only 

30-inchs is allowed;  
4. Provide trash enclosure details; and 
5. Fixture details and photometrics that comply with Section 13.05 should be submitted as part of 

the final site plan review.    
 

 









mdelarosa
Rectangle

mdelarosa
Jack Boarman - MI Stamp



mdelarosa
Rectangle

mdelarosa
Jack Boarman - MI Stamp



mdelarosa
Jack Boarman - MI Stamp



mdelarosa
Jack Boarman - MI Stamp



mdelarosa
Jack Boarman - MI Stamp



mdelarosa
Jack Boarman - MI Stamp

mdelarosa
Jack Boarman - MI Stamp



mdelarosa
Jack Boarman - MI Stamp



mdelarosa
Jack Boarman - MI Stamp



mdelarosa
Jack Boarman - MI Stamp









PC 2012.08.14 
  Agenda Item # 7 
 

DATE: August 8, 2012 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (File Number PUD 004) – Big Beaver 

Center (formerly “The Monarch”) PUD, North side of Big Beaver Road 
between Alpine and McClure, Section 20, Currently Zoned PUD 004 and 
R-1B (One Family Residential) Districts 

 
The applicant, AF Jonna Development, submitted an application for a Planned Unit 
Development.  The revised project includes a one-story 24,000 square foot retail 
building and a 4,000 square foot bank branch along the Big Beaver frontage, with 16 
single family residential units to the north.  
 
The Planning Commission is a recommending body for this item.  The applicant seeks 
the following approvals from City Council at this time:  

1. Rezone the northern two parcels from R-1B to Big Beaver Center PUD 
2. Concept Development Plan (CDP) approval for the Big Beaver Center PUD 
3. Preliminary Development Plan (PDP) approval for the Big Beaver Center PUD 

 
The Master Plan classifies this area as Big Beaver Corridor.  A description of this 
classification is attached.   
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA), the City’s 
Planning Consultant, summarizes the PUD application.  CWA prepared the report with 
input from various City departments including Planning, Engineering, Public Works and 
Fire.  City Management supports the findings of fact contained in the report and agrees 
with the recommendation.   
 
A public hearing was held for this item at the July 24, 2012 Planning Commission 
Special/Study meeting.  
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc., dated August 7, 2012 
3. Letter prepared by OHM, City Traffic Consultant, dated July 26, 2012 
4. City of Troy Master Plan (excerpt) 
5. Minutes from July 24, 2012 Planning Commission Special/Study meeting 

(excerpt). 
 

G:\PUD's\PUD 004 Big Beaver Center (formerly The Monarch)\Big Beaver Center\PC Memo 08 14 12.doc 



PROPOSED RESOLUTION 
 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (File Number PUD 004) – Big Beaver Center 
(formerly “The Monarch”) PUD, North side of Big Beaver Road between Alpine and 
McClure, Section 20, Currently Zoned PUD 004 and R-1B (One Family Residential) 
Districts 
 
Resolution # PC-2012-08- 
Moved by:  
Seconded by:  
 
WHEREAS, AF Jonna Development submitted an application for a Planned Unit 
Development, including a 24,000 square foot retail building and a 3,500 square foot 
bank branch along Big Beaver Road, with 16 single family residential units to the north; 
and,  
 
WHEREAS, The application is consistent with the City of Troy Master Plan; and,  
 
WHEREAS, The commercial component along Big Beaver achieves many of the goals 
of the Big Beaver Corridor Study; and, 
 
WHEREAS, The pedestrian amenities proposed by the applicant along Big Beaver 
provide a significant public benefit by offering a pedestrian style and scale building that 
can be an example to be emulated along the Big Beaver corridor; and 
 
WHEREAS, The residential component serves as a suitable transition between the 
commercial component and the existing residential neighborhood to the north; and, 
 
WHEREAS, The application is compatible with adjacent properties and uses. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby recommends that 
City Council approve of the rezoning of the northern two parcels (3128 Alpine and 3141 
McClure) from R-1B One Family Residential District to PUD Planned Unit Development, 
and that these two parcels be included in the proposed PUD; and, 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby recommends that City 
Council concurrently approve the Concept Development Plan (CDP) and Preliminary 
Development Plan (PDP) approval for the Big Beaver Center PUD. 
 
Yes:  
No:  
 
MOTION CARRIED/FAILED 
 
G:\PUD's\PUD 004 Big Beaver Center (formerly The Monarch)\Big Beaver Center\Proposed PC Resolution 08 14 
2012.doc 



Big Beaver Center PUD

3/8/2012

Legend

1: 2,390

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1990398 398Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75
Road Centerline

Major Road
Industrial Road
Local Road

Ponds and Basins
Streams and Creeks
Parcels
Aerial Photos - 2010

Red:    Band_1
Green: Band_2
Blue:   Band_3



Big Beaver Center PUD

3/8/2012

Legend

1: 2,390

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1990398 398Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75
Road Centerline

Major Road
Industrial Road
Local Road

Current Zoning Ordinance
(PUD) Planned Unit Development
(CF) Community Facilities District
(EP) Environmental Protection District
(BB) Big Beaver Road (Form Based)
(MRF) Maple Road (Form Based)
(NN) Neighborhood Nodes (A-U)
(CB) Community Business
(GB) General Business
(IB) Integrated Industrial Business District
(O) Office Building District
(OM) Office Mixed Use
(P) Vehicular Parking District
(R-1A) One Family Residential District
(R-1B) One Family Residential District
(R-1C) One Family Residential District
(R-1D) One Family Residential District
(R-1E) One Family Residential District
(RT) One Family Attached Residential District
(MR) Multi-Family Residential
(MHP) Manufactured Housing
(UR) Urban Residential
(RC) Research Center District
(PV) Planned Vehicle Sales

Ponds and Basins
Streams and Creeks
Parcels
Aerial Photos - 2010

Red:    Band_1
Green: Band_2
Blue:   Band_3



 
 
  

 Date: August 7, 2012 
 

Concept and Preliminary Planned Unit Development 
and Preliminary Site Plan Review 

For 
City of Troy, Michigan 

 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Applicant A.F. Jonna Development Company 
 
Project Name: Big Beaver Center: northeast quadrant  
 
Plan Date: August 6, 2012 
 
Location: Northeast corner of Big Beaver Road and Alpine 
 
Zoning: PUD and R1-B One Family Residential  
 
Action Requested: Planning Commission review and recommendation to the City Council 

for approval of the Concept Development Plan, Preliminary 
Development Plan, and Preliminary Site Plan Review.   

 
Required Information:          Deficiencies noted. 
 
 
PROCEDURE 
 
The procedure for review and approval of a PUD is a three-step process; however the action can be 
expedited to combine the concept and preliminary PUD approval: 

 
• The first step is an application for and approval of a Concept Development Plan.  The Concept 

Development Plan, Development Agreement, and rezoning the R-1B portion to PUD are 
approved by the City Council following recommendation of the Planning Commission.  Such 
action, if and when approved, shall confer upon the applicant approval of the Concept 
Development Plan and shall rezone the property to PUD in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of the Concept Development Plan approval.   

• The second step of the review and approval process is application for and approval of a 
Preliminary Development Plan for the entire project, or for any one or more phases of the 



Big Beaver Center PUD August 2012 

2 

Proposed Location of P.U.D 

Proposed Commercial Portion 

Proposed Residential Portion  

project.  City Council shall have the final authority to approve and grant Preliminary 
Development Plan approvals, following a recommendation by the Planning Commission.  The 
preliminary Development Plan approval includes preliminary site plan approval. 

 
At this meeting the applicant is seeking approval of both Concept and Preliminary Planned Unit 
Development.  Please note that if the Planning Commission recommends approval on the Concept PUD, 
and Preliminary PUD the matter is then forwarded to the City Council.  This matter will not come back 
before the Planning Commission unless a future amendment is sought.    
 

• The final step of the review and approval process is the review and approval of a Final 
Development Plan (final site plan) for the entire project, or for any one or more phases of the 
project, and the issuance of building permits.  Final Development Plans for Planned Unit 
Developments are submitted to the Planning Department for administrative review, and the 
Planning Department, with the recommendation of other appropriate City Departments, has 
final authority for approval of such Final Development Plans. 

 
SITE DESCRIPTION, AND CONCEPT PLAN 
 
The applicant is proposing a Planned Unit Development (PUD) on an existing vacant 7.5 acres site. The 
2.54 acre commercial portion of the site has no buildings but some portions are improved with asphalt. 
The 4.96 acre residential portion is entirely vacant.  
 
The proposed PUD includes 27,397 square feet of retail space in two (2) buildings and sixteen (16) 
single-family lots.  The commercial portion includes a 3,397 sq/ft free-standing drive-thru bank and a 
24,000 sq/ft retail building, which can be divided into multiple store fronts.  The applicant proposes to 
construct a new street between Alpine Road and McClure Road, parallel to Big Beaver Road, which the 
new 16 detached single-family lots will front on.    



Big Beaver Center PUD August 2012 

3 

 
SITE HISTORY 
 
This site was previously rezoned to PUD in 2005 as part of the “Monarch PUD” approval process.  The 
approved “Monarch PUD” included two (2) multiple-story towers;  

• Two residential towers (12 stories and 23 stories tall) were proposed to front Big Beaver Road 
that included 155 condominiums, including nine live-work units. 

• 319-space parking structure, 73 surface spaces, and 104 garage unit spaces for a total of 496 
spaces.  

• 52 villa townhouse units that spanned the northern part of the property. 
• Specialty retail consisting of 17,690 square feet. 

 
However due to economic timing the project was never built.  The proposed development is greatly 
reduced in scale and potential impact to the adjacent single-family neighborhood.   
 
While the “Monarch PUD” has expired, the site remains zoned as Planned Unit Development.  This PUD 
application is considered a new PUD application and is reviewed accordingly under Article 11 of the 
Ordinance. 
 
MASTER PLAN and OVERALL DESIGN 
 
The site is within the “Urban Mixed Use District: Troy City Center” district of the Big Beaver Corridor 
Plan and is within the Big Beaver Corridor district in the Troy 2008 Master Plan.  As its name implies, the 
primary focus of the Urban Mixed Use District with the Corridor Study is to promote mixed use 
development which includes retail, office, and residential.  Ground level spaces front on Big Beaver 
should be occupied by shops, entertainment, restaurant, and similar uses that stimulate interest and 
activity.  The upper-level floors should be occupied by office and residential uses.  
 
The Urban Mixed Use District is envisioned as the “city center” with a dense mix of uses and pedestrian 
amenities. This site is located at the heart of the Troy City Center, where building heights are 
anticipated to be 10—12 stories in height, dropping to four to six stories in intermediate zones to the 
north and south, and finally decreasing to three and two stories at the districts northern and southern 
edges.    
 
The uses and character of Big Beaver Corridor district in the Troy 2008 Master Plan are driven by the 
recommendations of the Big Beaver Corridor Study and subsequent efforts of the Planning Commission 
to create new zoning techniques to implement those recommendations. Specifically desires of the Big 
Beaver Corridor district in the Troy 2008 Master Plan included: 

• Building from lot line to lot line along the right-of-way rather than continuing to be a collection 
of isolated towers.     

• The use of vertically integrated mixed-use commercial, office and residential towers should be 
promoted.   

• The use of prominent ground floor retail, restaurants and cafes allows visual interest and 
activity for visitors and residents.       

• Contain parking in structures that are shared by surrounding developments.   
• Parking in rear and not visible from major throughfares.  
• Buildings set close to the street. 
• Buildings should rise in height toward Crooks Road in the east-west direction.   



Big Beaver Center PUD August 2012 

4 

• Buildings should rise in height toward Big Beaver in the north-south direction. 
 
The development of this significant 7.5 acre site is a unique opportunity to provide stimulus to future 
development of this important section of Big Beaver Road.  We encourage the development of this site 
and we applaud the applicants attempt to turn a vacant, dilapidated site into a viable commercial 
development.  Many of the aspects of the proposal meet the recommendations of the Big Beaver 
Corridor Study and Master Plan and we applaud the applicant for creating a unified commercial building 
placed along Big Beaver to create a presence and human-scale streetscape along the street.  This 
building placement carries on the vision of the future redevelopment of Big Beaver Road.  In addition 
we are encouraged with the proposal of prominent ground floor retail, restaurant uses, combined with 
interesting and pedestrian friendly architecture to create visual interest and activity.  In addition as 
requested, the applicant has provided better building orientation, connection, and architectural 
consistency between the bank building and the retail building.  These buildings are now connected with 
a pergola structure that serves not only as public art but directs pedestrians to the back side of the 
buildings.  As a result of these changes the applicant has provided a more welcoming and inviting space 
between the bank building and retail building.   
 
Furthermore, the residential portion of the development advances the Master Plan. The Plan calls for 
more residential uses on or near Big Beaver.  The distance from Somerset will allow for potential 
pedestrian activity.  Conventional R-1B zoning would allow the applicant to construct 12 units.  The 
applicant is proposing 16 units.  The slight increase in density will provide a natural transition between 
the established single-family neighborhood to the north and the commercial portion of the PUD.   
 
As noted in early reports we have worked closely with the applicant regarding the ability to create 
additional massing on the site.  Based on the experience and understanding of the applicant, a multiple 
story building is not market feasible at this time.  The applicant did explore creating office uses on the 
upper floors but due to an overabundance in the office market additional office space was not market 
feasible.   While we understand the desire for increased massing and bulk, we recognize the current 
market conditions that limit development as envisioned in the Big Beaver Corridor Plan and Master 
Plan.  It is likely that this site would sit vacant for the unforeseeable future if a multi-story development 
were required.  Furthermore, it should be noted that what the applicant is proposing is consistent with 
the Big Beaver corridor which allows one-story buildings.  In addition, the applicant has provided 
significant investment and public benefit through pedestrian amenities along Big Beaver. These 
pedestrian amenities along Big Beaver not only advance the intent of the Master Plan they also provide 
a significant public benefit by offering a pedestrian style and scale building that can be an example to be 
emulated along the Big Beaver corridor.  Provided a few site planning changes (see site plan review 
section below) overall the applicant has taken the appropriate measures to mitigate any potential 
negative impacts upon the adjacent single-family residential neighborhood to the north and provide the 
massing, scale, and overall development size as envisioned in the master plan.   
 
The only relief requested by the applicant is the drive-through for the bank and the increase in 
residential uses from 12 to 16.  Through the PUD process the city is obtaining more public benefit in the 
form of pedestrian amenities and architectural character than what is required to be provided.   
 
Items to be Addressed:  None 
 
 
 



Big Beaver Center PUD August 2012 

5 

PRIOR PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW 
 
On July 24, 2012 the Planning Commission reviewed the proposed PUD.  At that meeting the following 
issues were raised by either our staff report, the Planning Commission, or through public comments:  
 

• Traffic and Development Access  
• Commercial Site Planning Issues 
• Residential Site Planning Issues 

 
Please refer to our July 18, 2012 memo for details regarding a complete Site Plan Review.  Since the July 
24, 2012 meeting the applicant has addressed the following issues:   
 
TRAFFIC and DEVELOPMENT ACCESS 
 
A concern was raised regarding the potential impact the development would have in regards to traffic 
and site access.  Specifically the concern was traffic impact on Alpine Road and the single-family 
neighborhood to the north, automobile stacking and access onto and from Big Beaver Road, and the 
total number of curb cuts.  The City’s traffic consultant, Stephen Dearing from OHM, has provided the 
Commission with a memo outlining traffic impact.  A copy of the memo is provided in the packet.  
 
COMMERCIAL SITE PLANNING ISSUES 
 
The following site planning issues were raised in our review.  Listed below is each issue and how each 
issues has been addressed by the applicant.  
 

1) Reduce parking to provide for more landscape area.   
 
The applicant has increased the total amount of landscaping by adding planter boxes between the 
parking area and the rear façade of the retail building.  Such landscaping is used to soften the back 
façade as well as mirror the landscaping provided along the Big Beaver façade.   

 
2) Incorporate bicycle parking as part of the pedestrian realm on Big Beaver. 

 
The applicant has added bicycle parking.  Such parking is located next to plaza that fronts on Big 
Beaver.    

 
3) Address any recommendations based on the review by OHM in regards to traffic, parking, 

access, and circulation.   
 

The applicant has addressed the traffic and egress recommendations outlined in Mr. Dearing’s 
review, specifically reducing the bank egress point from 24-feet in width to 14-feet.   
 
4) Provide turning template for delivery trucks and fire trucks.   
 
The applicant has provided a turning template for delivery trucks and fire trucks. The template 
confirms that circulation is sufficient.     
 
5) Indicate the material used as part of the expanded sidewalk. 



Big Beaver Center PUD August 2012 

6 

 
The applicant has provided materials and engineering details for the expanded sidewalk along Big 
Beaver.  

 
6) Consider pedestrian style pole lighting in pedestrian realm. 

 
The applicant has added eight (8) decorative 8-foot high pedestrian style lights spaced out along the 
entire frontage of Big Beaver.  Pole style and light fixtures should be provided as part of the final 
site plan submittal.  

 
7) Provide preliminary grading and utilities. 

 
The applicant has provided necessary preliminary grading and utilities.  

 
8) Add additional landscaping to comply with 20% site landscaping requirement.  Consider a 

green roof.  
 
Based on the lot size, the applicant is required to provide approximately 22,000 sq/ft of landscaped 
area, which may include both soft and hardscaped area. While the total amount of landscape area 
on the site has increased from 12% to 14% the applicant is still deficient by approximately 5,500 
sq/ft.  The Planning Commission is able to grant relief from this requirement.   
 
Due to the building form requirements of the Big Beaver corridor, and the desire to build more 
“urban” style developments, obtaining 20% site landscaping is often difficult to obtain.  The 
Planning Commission should consider granting relief from this 20% landscaping requirement.   
 
9) Reduce the maximum lighting to no greater than 20 foot candles. 

 
The applicant has not resubmitted a photometric plan.  The applicant shall submit a revised 
photometric plan for final site plan review.   

 
10) Lights shall be turned-off or reduced between the hours of 11:00 p.m. and sunrise. 
 
The applicant has not resubmitted a photometric plan.  The applicant shall submit a revised 
photometric plan noting that lights will be turned off during these hours for final site plan review.   

 
11) A revised photometric plan should be submitted which more clearly indicate the proposed 

fixture locations, including the use of pedestrian scale pole lighting the pedestrian realm. 
 
The applicant has not resubmitted a photometric plan.  The applicant shall submit a revised 
photometric plan for final site plan review.   

 
12) Submit sign package. 
 
Though not required by ordinance we did encourage the applicant to submit a sign package for the 
entire site that will carry a consistent theme and greatly advance building design.  While generalized 
sign locations have been shown on the elevations, the applicant has noted that final signage styles 



Big Beaver Center PUD August 2012 

7 

and locations have not been determined.  Sign package and sign permits can be submitted as part of 
building permit application.   

 
13) Confirm location of bank transformer.  Move behind bank building if necessary. 

 
The applicant has moved the bank transformer out of the planter that fronts on Big Beaver and 
closer to the bank.   

 
14) Submit samples, swatches, or manufacturer’s specification sheets of the predominant 

proposed exterior materials and colors of all buildings and permanent structures, including 
walls and fences. 

 
The applicant has not submitted samples, swatches, or manufactures specification sheets.  The 
applicant has been advised to bring to the meeting.   

 
15) Provide additional screening or other site considerations if directed by the Planning 

Commission to better screen the drive-through from Big Beaver. 
 

The applicant has provided sufficient screening of the drive-thru that both balances the need for 
screening as well as provides clear site lines for egressing cars.  

 
Items to be Addressed: Seek relief to provide less than the required 20% site landscaping as part of PUD 
approval.  
 
RESIDENTIAL SITE PLANNING ISSUES 
 
The following site planning issues were raised in our review.  Listed with each issue is how the applicant 
has addressed them: 
 

1) Submit a zoning calculation table. 
 
The applicant has provided a complete zoning calculation table for every lot. 

 
2) Increase the northern rear yard setbacks to 45 feet. 

 
The applicant has increased the northern rear yard setbacks to 45-feet.  In addition the applicant 
has provided significant landscape screening within the 45-feet setback.  

 
3) Submit sample floor plans and elevations. 

 
The applicant has provided sample floor plans and elevations. 

 
4) Provide sidewalks along their entire portion that fronts on McClure Road and Alpine Drive. 

 
The applicant has provided sidewalks along their entire portion that fronts on McClure Road and 
Alpine drive. 

 



Big Beaver Center PUD August 2012 

8 

5) Submit samples, swatches, or manufacturer’s specification sheets of the predominant 
proposed exterior materials and colors of all buildings and permanent structures, including 
walls and fences. 
 

The applicant has not submitted samples, swatches, or manufactures specification sheets.  The 
applicant has been advised to bring to the meeting.   

 
6) Provide preliminary grading and utilities. 
 
The applicant has provided necessary preliminary grading and utilities.  

 
7) Identify trees to be removed. 

 
The applicant has identified the trees for removal.   

 
8) Applicant is encouraged to selectively clear only those trees necessary and attempt to 

preserve as many significant trees as possible. 
 

Applicant has noted they that intend to preserve as many significant trees as possible. In addition, 
the applicant proposes significant planting of deciduous and coniferous trees along the new 
roadway and along the northern and southern property line. 

 
9) Increase frontage screening on Alpine Drive and McClure Road as required by ordinance. 

 
The applicant has increased the total amount of screening required in the greenbelt along Alpine 
Drive and McClure Road.  

 
Items to be Addressed: none  
 
PUD STANDARDS  
 
The PUD provisions of the Zoning Ordinance are found in Article 11.  The PUD Section provides 
standards under Section 11.03 for Planning Commission to review.  Many of the standards are 
addressed in our memo, however a summary of our comments in regards to the standards include:  
 
11.03.A. The proposed development shall be applied for by a person or entity who has the legal right 
to execute a binding agreement covering all parcels in the PUD. 
 
The submittal states that A.F Jonna Development Company, the applicant, is the owner of the property. 
 
Section 11.03.B. The applicant shall demonstrate that through the use of the PUD option, the 
development will accomplish a sufficient number of the following objectives, as are reasonably 
applicable to the site, providing: 
 

1. A mixture of land uses that would otherwise not be permitted without the use of the PUD 
provided that other objectives of this Article are also met. 

 



Big Beaver Center PUD August 2012 

9 

The project includes a mix of uses, horizontally, as envisioned and desired by the Master Plan.  The 
proposed mix of uses would not be permitted without the use of the PUD.   
 

2. A public improvement or public facility (e.g. recreational, transportation, safety and security) 
which will enhance, add to or replace those provided by public entities, thereby furthering 
the public health, safety and welfare. 

 
The Applicant is providing a significant public benefit by greatly improving the “Pedestrian Realm (area 
between building and roadway)” with the following features:  

• 30-feet in depth of pedestrian area  
• Landscape planter boxes 
• Plaza in front of bank 
• Pergola structure that serves not only as public art but directs pedestrians to the back side of 

the buildings 
• Awnings on buildings 
• Future outdoor seating  
• Pedestrian style and scaled building lighting  

 
These pedestrian amenities along Big Beaver not only advance the intent of the Master Plan they also 
provide a significant public benefit by offering a pedestrian style and scale building that can be an 
example to be emulated along the Big Beaver corridor.  
 
These significant public features are achievable through the PUD process.   

 
3. A recognizable and material benefit to the ultimate users of the project and to the 

community, where such benefit would otherwise be infeasible or unlikely to be achieved 
absent these regulations. 

 
This project includes a collection of restaurant uses, retail spaces, and an under-represented type of 
residential unit in Troy.  This compact project with a mix of uses will allow for the northern residential 
neighborhood to be served by adjacent retail uses. This is especially true given the project’s walkable 
design, easily access, and integrated public common areas.  Furthermore, without the PUD the 
significant public improvements would not be achievable.   

 
4. Long-term protection and preservation of natural resources, natural features, and historic 

and cultural resources, of a significant quantity and/or quality in need of protection or 
preservation, and which would otherwise be unfeasible or unlikely to be achieved absent 
these regulations. 

 
Not applicable 

 
5. A compatible mixture of open space, landscaped areas, and/or pedestrian amenities. 

 
As aforementioned, the applicant is proposing a significant amount of pedestrian amenities.   
 

6. Appropriate land use transitions between the PUD and surrounding properties. 
 



Big Beaver Center PUD August 2012 

10 

The proposed single-family portion of the PUD will provide a natural transition between the established 
single-family neighborhood to the north and the commercial portion of the PUD.   
 

7. Design features and techniques, such as green building and low impact design, which will 
promote and encourage energy conservation and sustainable development. 

 
In order to provide increased open and landscaped area, the applicant is encouraged to consider a 
green roof.  
 

8. Innovative and creative site and building designs, solutions and materials. 
 

The applicant has shown innovative and creative site and building design.  As shown the Master Plan, 
the applicant has placed the building along Big Beaver to create a presence and human-scale 
streetscape along the street.  This building placement carries on the vision of the future redevelopment 
of Big Beaver Road.  In addition the applicant has provided an interesting mix of ground floor retail, 
restaurants uses, combined with interesting and pedestrian friendly architecture to create visual 
interest and activity.  The development includes a compact collection of uses with integrated public 
areas and extensive pedestrian amenities between the various project components. 

 
9. The desirable qualities of a dynamic urban environment that is compact, designed to human 

scale, and exhibits contextual integration of buildings and city spaces. 
 
The provided pedestrian amenities along Big Beaver and the pedestrian style and scale building create a 
unique style of development that is not common along Big Beaver.  The development creates a dynamic 
urban environment and provides a building example to be emulated along the Big Beaver corridor.  

 
10. The PUD will reasonably mitigate impacts to the transportation system and enhance non-

motorized facilities and amenities. 
 
The proposed pedestrian amenities, architectural features, and residential units in close proximity to Big 
Beaver lend itself to creating a friendly pedestrian environment which reduces impact to the existing 
transportation system and enhances non-motorized facilities and amenities.   
 

11. For the appropriate assembly, use, redevelopment, replacement and/ or improvement of 
existing sites that are occupied by obsolete uses and/or structures. 

 
The existing site is vacant, dilapidated and underutilized. The proposed development greatly enhances 
the current site and is appropriate for the area.   

 
12. A complementary variety of housing types that is in harmony with adjacent uses. 

 
The proposed residential portion of the PUD is compatible to the adjacent established single-family 
neighborhood and will serve as a nice transition from the denser commercial portion.   

 
13. A reduction of the impact of a non-conformity or removal of an obsolete building or 

structure. 
 



Big Beaver Center PUD August 2012 

11 

Not applicable; however, as noted the site is vacant, dilapidated, and underulitized.  The proposed 
development will greatly improve the existing site.  

 
14. A development consistent with and meeting the intent of this Article, which will promote the 

intent of the Master Plan or the intent of any applicable corridor or sub-area plans.  If 
conditions have changed since the Plan, or any applicable corridor or sub-area plans were 
adopted, the uses shall be consistent with recent development trends in the area. 

 
The development of this significant 7.5 acre site is a unique opportunity to provide stimulus to future 
development of this important section of Big Beaver Road.  Many of the aspects of the proposal meet 
the recommendations of the Big Beaver Corridor Study and Master Plan by creating a development that 
fronts along Big Beaver to create a presence and human-scale streetscape along the street.  The 
building placement carries on the vision of the future redevelopment of Big Beaver Road.  In addition 
the applicant has proposed prominent ground floor retail, restaurants uses, combined with interesting 
and pedestrian friendly architecture that creates visual interest and activity.   

 
15. Includes all necessary information and specifications with respect to structures,  heights, 

setbacks, density, parking, circulation, landscaping, amenities and  other design and layout 
features, exhibiting a due regard for the relationship  of the development to the surrounding 
properties and uses thereon, as well as  to the relationship between the various elements 
within the proposed Planned  Unit Development.  In determining whether these relationships 
have been appropriately addressed, consideration shall be given to the following: 

 
a. The bulk, placement, and materials of construction of the proposed structures and other 

site improvements. 
b. The location and screening of vehicular circulation and parking areas in relation to 

surrounding properties and the other elements of the development. 
c. The location and screening of outdoor storage, loading areas, outdoor activity or work 

areas, and mechanical equipment. 
d. The hours of operation of the proposed uses. 
e. The location, amount, type and intensity of landscaping, and other site amenities. 

 
The proposed development is complementary and greatly enhances the surrounding area.  The 
applicant has taken the appropriate measures to mitigate any potential negative impacts upon the 
adjacent single-family residential neighborhood to the north.   
 

16. Parking shall be provided in order to properly serve the total range of uses within the 
Planned Unit Development.  The sharing of parking among the various muses within a 
Planned Unit Development may be permitted.  The applicant shall provide justification to the 
satisfaction of the City that the shared parking proposed is sufficient for the development 
and will not impair the functioning of  the development, and will not have a negative effect 
on traffic flow within the  development and/or on properties adjacent to the development. 

 
Because tenants have been identified, the provision of 148 parking spaces should sufficiently serve the 
development.  
 

17. Innovative methods of stormwater management that enhance water quality shall be 
considered in the design of the stormwater system. 



Big Beaver Center PUD August 2012 

12 

 
Not applicable 

 
18. The proposed Planned Unit Development shall be in compliance with all applicable Federal, 

State and local laws and ordinances, and shall coordinate with existing public facilities. 
 
The proposal complies with all federal, state and local laws and coordinates with existing public 
facilities.   
 
 
SUMMARY OF FINDINGS 
 
We find that the proposed development meets the PUD standards as outlined in Section 11.03.  The 
development of this significant 7.5 acre site is a unique opportunity to provide stimulus to future 
development of this important section of Big Beaver Road.  Many of the aspects of the proposal PUD 
meet the recommendations of the Big Beaver Corridor Study and Master Plan by creating a 
development that fronts along Big Beaver to create a presence and human-scale streetscape along the 
street.  The building placement carries on the vision of the future redevelopment of Big Beaver Road. 
The proposed development is greatly reduced in scale and potential impact to the adjacent single-
family neighborhood than what was previously approved for this site.  The proposed development is 
compatible with and will serve the adjacent neighborhood to the north.    
 
In addition the applicant has proposed prominent ground floor retail, restaurants uses, combined with 
interesting and pedestrian friendly architecture that creates visual interest and activity.  The pedestrian 
amenities proposed by the applicant along Big Beaver not only advance the intent of the Master Plan 
they also provide a significant public benefit by offering a pedestrian style and scale building that can be 
an example to be emulated along the Big Beaver corridor. Through the PUD process the city is obtaining 
more public benefit in the form of pedestrian amenities and architectural character than what is 
required to be provided.   We believe the compact, integrated design and complementary mix of uses 
included in this project would benefit the Big Beaver Corridor and the City of Troy.   
 
Furthermore, all previously noted site plan issues have either been addressed by the applicant or are 
required to be submitted as part of final site plan review.  We support the proposed project and believe 
the project does meet or exceed minimum requirements.  As such we recommend approval.  

 

 
 



 

    

 

34000 Plymouth Road | Livonia, MI 48150 
p. (734) 522-6711 | f. (734) 522-6427 

www.ohm-advisors .com  

July 26, 2012 

 

Mr. William Huotari, PE  
Deputy City Engineer 
City of Troy 
500 W Big Beaver Road 
Troy, MI 48084 
 
Re: Big Beaver Center Site Plan 
 
Dear Mr. Huotari: 
  
As requested, I have reviewed the site plan for the proposed Big Beaver Center, located on the 
north side of Big Beaver Road between Alpine and McClure Roads.  My understanding is that 
you wish my comments on a number of traffic related questions that have been raised, such as 
what should be the appropriate number and location of the access driveways. 
 
The existing site has three driveways to Big Beaver Road, two entirely within the parcel and a 
shared drive with the office building to the east which houses the Detroit Auto Dealers Assoc. 
and the Troy Program Center of Northwood University.  The two drives within the parcel are to 
be removed in their entirety.  There are currently four drives to Alpine Rd, one for the office / 
retail portion of the site and three for former residential houses.  The plan would retain four 
accesses, one new street intersection for the residential portion of the site, and two full access 
and a single one-way drive for the retail portion.  The retail portion will have cross access to a 
single full access drive to McClure Rd.  And the five existing driveways on McClure for former 
residential houses will be replaced with one new street intersection with McClure. 
 
Big Beaver Rd represents high-speed and high-volume travel movements.  The removal of two 
existing drives by way of the proposed plan is entirely appropriate and commendable; it 
promotes access management on this principal arterial and conforms with the Big Beaver 
Corridor Plan developed by the City of Troy.  By way of contrast, both Alpine and McClure 
Roads are local streets, who’s primary function is to provide essentially unlimited access to 
adjoining properties.  With the particular plan being reviewed, there is no change in the number 
of points of access for Alpine, and the number is being reduced for McClure.  However, even if 
the number of drives were to be increasing for either street, this is exactly what these local 
roads are designed for.  Reducing the number of drives will not in any way change the 
anticipated modest traffic volumes that will be using the development property.  Rather, it would 
just change the density of traffic as choices are limited. 
 
Indeed, the only issue I note with the property’s access plan is the one-way drive that provides 
the exit to the proposed bank drive-through lanes.  This driveway is very close to the 
intersection of Alpine and Big Beaver.  Its proximity may lead to problems with bank traffic 
leaving the site when other traffic is queuing along Alpine waiting to turn onto Big Beaver.  I 
recommend that the developer investigate shifting this drive as far to the north of the 
intersection with Big Beaver as possible. 
 
I understand that there is also a call for the local street proposed for the residential development 
portion of the site to be made a cul-de-sac instead of extending between Alpine and McClure.  
While dead end roads were very common in the post-war, suburban-style pattern of 
development, they are today recognized as less than desirable.  Simply put, the principle reason 



 

 

for limiting dead end streets is risk acceptance – how many people / homes / businesses should 
be put at risk of being isolated if something happens to block their sole point of access.  This is 
usually related to the need for emergency service providers to get through.  
 
Obviously, there are other reasons to limit the length of cul-de-sacs.  They tend to require more 
effort to maintain (i.e. snow plowing, longer dead-end utilities), distort circulation patterns 
(especially for pedestrians), and sociologists believe they promote a sense of social isolation 
and inhibit building neighborhood cohesiveness.  For these reasons, cul-de-sac streets are 
considered very undesirable and should be utilized sparingly and only in cases of extreme 
topography or wetland conditions.   
 
I have heard in other communities the argument that maybe the shortcomings of cul-de-sac 
streets can be mitigated by providing an “emergency only” access.  This is sophistry and 
dishonest.  If provided, how would one prevent its routine use?  If some physical barrier is 
provided, such as breakaway bollards, then how would the access be maintained?  This is 
especially important in Michigan, given our winters and the need for snow removal.  If an access 
is unavailable for three to four months a year, it would be fallacious to claim the benefit of 
providing it. 
 
There was one other point I believe you wish me to comment on.  It has been suggested that 
the bank portion of the development be shifted from the west to east side of the site.  As already 
noted, there is a problem with the location of the exit only driveway to Alpine Road.  So making 
this change would resolve that issue.  But there is also a downside to this idea.  Banks and 
other businesses with drive-though windows must entirely rely on travel flow patterns that allow 
the vehicles to present the driver’s side to the window.  If the queuing provided on the site plan 
happened to be inadequate, the existing plan would mean additional queuing within the parking 
lot, and in truly extreme cases out to Alpine.  On the other hand, positioning the bank on the 
east side of the site, adjacent to the shared use driveway, may mean that any spill backs with 
be out to Big Beaver Rd, a far more undesirable consequence.  I do not view that there is any 
fundamental advantage with the bank being located on the east or west side of the site.  So long 
as my concern for the proximity of the exit drive to Big Beaver is addressed, there is no pressing 
reason to require the bank location to be changed. 
 
I hope this discussion helps address some of the questions that have been raised.  If you wish 
any clarification, please feel free to contact me. 
 
Sincerely, 
Orchard, Hiltz & McCliment, Inc. 
 
 
 
 
Stephen B. Dearing, PE, PTOE 
Manager of Traffic Engineering Services 
 



101

CITY OF TROY MASTER PLAN

CHAPTER 9: LAND PATTERNS

Big Beaver Road: 

A World Class Boulevard

Home to large, landmark projects and • 
mixed-use regional destinations.
Central gathering area of the community.• 
A collection of international corporations, • 
local companies, and establishments which 
complement these high-visibility uses. 

The Big Beaver Road corridor is responsible 
for the fi rst impression many people have 
throughout Michigan when they think of the 
City of Troy.    The high-rise buildings, Somerset 
Collection, and its immediate proximity to 
I-75 are frequently the main elements visitors 
remember about the Corridor and the City.   In 

order to remain competitive and continue 

to be a leader in economic development 

in Southeast Michigan, Troy must plan for 

this Corridor to evolve in light of a changing 

economy.  In that spirit, the City adopted the 
key concepts of the Big Beaver Corridor Study in 
2006:

Gateways, Districts and Transitions • 
Trees and Landscape as Ceilings and Walls • 
Walking Becomes Entertainment - Much to • 
Observe & Engage In 
Mixing the Uses Turns on the Lights - • 
Energetic Dynamic of Mixed Uses with a 
Focus on Residential 

The Automobile & Parking are No Longer #1. • 
Civic Art as the Wise Sage of the Boulevard• 

The uses and character of this future 

land use category are driven by the 

recommendations of the Big Beaver Corridor 

Study and subsequent eff orts of the Planning 

Commission to create new zoning techniques 

to implement those recommendations.

This Study provided a comprehensive analysis 
of the existing and potential characteristics 
of this important area.  The planned future 
land uses in the Big Beaver Corridor are in 
large part considered mixed-use, to allow for a 
wave of new residential development and the 
redevelopment of individual sites to make a 
more meaningful contribution to the quality of 
life of the City.  The main diff erence between the 
various mixed-use districts planned in the Study 
is building height.  The intended characteristics 
of the various districts are also very diff erent, 
and are the topic of in-depth analysis in the 
Study.  Some important recommendations of 
that Study are listed below.  

Moving toward the creation of distinct • 
physical districts by building from lot line to 
lot line along the right-of-way rather than 
continuing to be a collection of isolated 
towers.    

Becoming fl exible with land use • 
relationships.  The use of vertically 
integrated mixed-use commercial, offi  ce 
and residential towers should be promoted.  
The use of prominent ground fl oor retail, 
restaurants and cafes allows visual interest 
and activity for visitors and residents.      

Contain parking in structures that are shared • 
by surrounding developments.  Do not allow 
off -street parking to be visible from major 
thoroughfares.  

Landscape Big Beaver and intersecting • 
thoroughfares with rows of mature trees.

BIG BEAVER ROAD



102 CHAPTER 9: LAND PATTERNS

DESIGN CONCEPT
This will be a vibrant high-rise business and • 
residential district.  

Pedestrian use will be promoted through • 
massive landscaping, wide sidewalks, 
outdoor cafes, and public art.  

The Big Beaver Corridor Study and Big • 
Beaver Development Code provide for a 
specifi c land development pattern.   

Architectural design must create an • 
interesting visual experience for both 
sidewalk users at close range and for those 
viewing the skyline from a distance.

SITE DESIGN ATTRIBUTES
Parking should be located in rear yards.• 

Development should include intense street • 
tree planting along Big Beaver.

Cafes, plazas, parks and similar amenities to • 
draw pedestrians will be encouraged.

Buildings will frame the street network by • 
building to the front and side property lines.  
Exceptions for cafes, plazas and access roads 
may be permitted.  

BUILDING DESIGN ATTRIBUTES
Buildings should rise in height toward • 
Crooks Road in the east-west direction.  

Buildings should rise in height toward Big • 
Beaver in the north-south direction.

Ground level stories should be a minimum of • 
twelve feet in height; with large expanses of 
transparent glass.  

Fenestration at the ground level should be • 
highlighted through the use of awnings, 
overhangs or trim detailing, and building 
caps or roofs should provide a visually 
interesting skyline.

Concept Sketch from the Big Beaver Corridor Study; Birchler Arroyo Associates, Inc.

Big Beaver Corridor Study; Birchler Arroyo Associates, Inc.



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT JULY 24, 2012 
  
 
 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 
 
8. PUBLIC HEARING – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (File Number PUD 004) – 

Big Beaver Center (formerly “The Monarch”) PUD, North side of Big Beaver Road 
between Alpine and McClure, Section 20, Currently Zoned PUD 004 and R-1B 
(One Family Residential) Districts 
 
Mr. Savidant introduced the item. 
 
The petitioners, Arkan Jonna and Jordan Jonna of A. F. Jonna Development 
Company were present.   
 
Mark Nickita, AIA, of Archive Design Studio, gave a PowerPoint presentation on 
the commercial project design. 
 
Mr. Krent addressed vehicular traffic and the residential aspect of the 
development.  He suggested moving the bank to the east and would like to see a 
good transitional blend between the proposed and existing residential.  Mr. Krent 
distributed a proposed layout depicting the bank on the east side of the site. 
 
Mr. Carlisle gave a brief history of the site and a report on the proposed 
development.  He said the proposal meets many aspects of Master Plan and the 
proposed public realm is a very significant public benefit.  Mr. Carlisle addressed 
the findings of the traffic consultant report that the increase in density would have 
a negligible effect along Big Beaver.  He applauded the petitioner in the massing 
of the building.  In conclusion, Mr. Carlisle addressed site plan concerns relating 
to both the commercial and residential site plans. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPEN 
 
Jeanne Stine, 1915 Boulan, Troy; addressed density, vehicular and pedestrian 
traffic, curb cuts, egress, bank location, safety of children, traffic light/pedestrian 
crossing. 
 
Barbara Dawson, 1834 Boulan, Troy, addressed cut-through traffic, dead end or 
cul de sac street, bank location, front vs rear parking for commercial. 
 
Susan Tompkins, 1725 Banmoor, addressed findings of traffic study, sidewalks, 
pedestrian traffic. 
 
Sharon Mitchell, 3142 McClure, Troy, addressed vehicular and pedestrian traffic. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
There was discussion on: 
• Vehicular traffic; cut-through traffic. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT JULY 24, 2012 
  
 
 

• Proposed bank. 
o Ingress/egress; potential traffic congestion. 
o Moving bank to the east. 
o Drive-through capability. 
o Newly adopted Zoning Ordinance amendment; drive through must utilize 

in lane or side street. 
• Pedestrian walkway; width of walkway. 
• Parking. 

o Front versus rear. 
o Percentage for food services. 

• Material samples. 
• Residential development. 

o Buffer. 
o Transition between high and low density. 
o Blend with existing neighborhood. 

• Additional public amenities. 
• No sidewalks; safety of children. 
• Building view from rear. 

o Architectural design. 
o Landscape/ additional green. 

• DDA district boundaries. 
 
The petitioners addressed reasons for not moving the bank to the east. 
• Conflict with vehicular and pedestrian bank patrons. 
• Detraction of retail point position. 
 
Resolution # PC-2012-07-050 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby postpones this item until such 
time that the applicant submits a complete Concept Development Plan and 
Preliminary Development Plan application that addresses the issues identified in 
the Planning Consultant report. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the table. 
 
The petitioner advised that the proposed residential portion of the development 
would be inclusive of the complete application submittal. 
 
Vote on the motion on the table. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 




































	1. ROLL CALL
	2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	July 24, 2012 Special/Study Meeting

	4. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	5. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 975)
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Proposed Resolution
	Maps (2)
	Planning Consultant Report (pgs 13-15)
	Site Plan (pgs 16-20)

	6. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 976)
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Proposed Resolution
	Maps (2)
	Planning Consultant Report (pgs 25-31)
	Site Plan (pgs 32-46)

	7. PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (File Number PUD 004)
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Proposed Resolution
	Maps (2)
	Planning Consultant Report (pgs 51-62)
	OHM Traffic Correspondence (pgs 63-64)
	Master Plan Excerpt (pgs 65-66)
	Draft Minutes, July 24, 2012
	Site Plan (pgs 69-85)

	8. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	9. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS



